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DATE: October 13, 2020

DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
BUREAU OF CAPITAL PROJECT DESIGN MANAGEMENT

1800  HERR STREETS
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA

ADDENDUM NO.  2

on

PROJECT NO. DGS C-0962-0034 PHASE 001
PROJECT TITLE - Fort Indiantown Gap - New Water Line
PROFESSIONAL:
Military and Veterans Affairs
Building 0-11, Chapel Road, FTIG
Annville, PA, 17003

If you submitted a bid through e-Builder prior to this Addendum being issued, your bid has been 
discarded and you must re-submit your bid(s) through e-Builder prior to the bid opening date and 

time.  Please see Section 4.C. of the Instruction to Bidder

GENERAL CHANGES – ALL CONTRACTS
        Item 1 -     The attached Notice to Proposers replaces in its entirety the previously issued Notice to Proposers.

        Item 2 -      RFP Section 1-4 Compliance with the Separations Act.  The Design-Build Contract will be a General 
Construction (.1) contract. If the DBC determines that HVAC, Electrical or Plumbing work is required to complete the 
project, the provisions of the Separations Act will apply.

         Item 3 -     RFP Section 2-3 Proposal Format.  A single Technical Submittal is required for both Base Bid #1 and 
Base Bid #2.

         Item 4 -     RFP Section 2-4.4 Qualifications. The proposer will provide Qualification information for each role 
required on the project, as they will be scored on that basis.

         Item 5 -     RFP Section 4-7 Schedule and Milestones. Shutdowns for tie-ins and connections must be scheduled 
with the Client Agency in accordance with Paragraph 3.2.6.3 of the Technical Scope. All work will be on the main 
distribution lines and service lines to hydrants and valves as indicated on the base bid map and attached Appendix A 
"FTIG Utility Mapping" dated 10.06.2020. No work will be done on the interior of any building. Access to buildings 
will not be needed.

         Item 6 -     RFP Technical Scope. The scope of this project is to replace an existing water system owned entirely 
by Fort Indiantown Gap; no new service is required. All seven stream crossings are part of the contract; see Item 19 
below. A licensed plumber is not required for any work five feet beyond any building line. Hydraulic or water quality 
modeling is not required as part of this project. The new waterline will be installed adjacent to existing as indicated on 
the base bid map.   New waterline is not required to be installed on the paved shoulder of the roadway. The quantity of 
hydrants and valves will remain the same but will be replaced; see Paragraph 2.6 of the Technical Scope regarding 
hydrant and valve locations. DBC is responsible for operating valves, knock down pressure, energize, and flushing 
lines. Paving repairs shall be made in accordance with Technical Scope Paragraph 3.1.1. DBC is responsible for means 
and methods.

         Item 7 -     RFP Technical Scope Section 5.5 Permits and Regulatory Approvals. No PennDOT Occupancy 
Permit is required.
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         Item 8 -     RFP Exhibit H Scoring Matrix. The proposer will be scored based on the Technical Submittal 
provided. The DBC is not required to be the General Construction Contractor; however, if this is the case, the DBC 
proposer would submit relevant qualifications under sections for both the DBC qualifications as well as the General 
Construction Contractor qualifications. The information submitted for each section may be different as the requested 
information (i.e., similar project experience, team personnel) is relevant to the specific discipline.

         Item 9 -     RFP Appendix J General Conditions for the Design-Build Contract. Article 2.3(c) states that 
information in the specifications and drawings shall govern over the General Conditions.  All sections of the General 
Conditions that are applicable to the scope of work will apply.  Article 6.15 states that fees for permits and 
sewer/water taps will be reimbursed through a change order; however, the costs for these fees shall be included in the 
proposal.

         Item 10 -   RFP Appendix J General Conditions for the Design-Build Contract. Article 10.18 requires property 
insurance that includes a Builder's Risk Policy or an installation floater that covers all risk of loss or damage on all 
insurable work included in the Contract.

         Item 11 -    RFP Appendix N.  The attached Pennsylvania Prevailing Wage Determination replaces in its entirety 
the previously issued Davis Bacon Wage Determination.

         Item 12 -    Water will be provided at no charge for testing, flushing, and wash down. Water, sewer, and 
electrical connections are available for an office trailer.  Contractor is responsible for connection to existing FTIG 
electric and water sub-meters.  Contractor will be billed monthly for office trailer usage.

         Item 13 -   Contract Duration was extended to 545 calendar days per Addendum 1, dated 10.01.2020, and will 
commence upon the effective date of the contract, as defined in the General Conditions for Design-Build Contracts.  
Permitting is included in this duration.

         Item 14 -   Cost proposal shall be based on unclassified excavation.  A disposal area will be provided for soils, 
asphalt, concrete. A location at FTIG will be provided after contract award. See also Item 18.

         Item 15 -   Replace piping sizes shall be 10" for main distribution, 6" for service connections to hydrants.  All 
other connections will match existing pipe size. Refer to Technical Scope Paragraph 3.2 for component requirements. 
HDPE pipe can be used for directional drilling.

         Item 16 -   Requirements from the City of Lebanon. The existing electrical meter sockets belong to the City of 
Lebanon and are not available for use.  New monitoring equipment will be needed to be battery powered with a 5-year 
expectancy.  The City of Lebanon will not review/approve the DBC/s means and methods and material selection. Due 
to new information received from the City of Lebanon Authority, the following information will be addressed in the 
next Addendum: 
                             a.  Clarification regarding flow metering and pressure transmitter installation. 
                              b.  Specific requirements for work for City-owned vaults and around their equipment.
                             c.  As-built details of existing meter pits.

         Item 17 -  No transite piping is known to exist.  However, due to the age of the piping in the project area and the 
absence of testing data or other historical water system installation information, we cannot state for certain that there 
are no transite or similar materials present in the project area. 

         Item 18 -   Multiple environmental incidents have historically occurred throughout FTIG's Cantonment area. To 
date, DMVA's Bureau of Environmental Management (BEM) has not identified obvious locations of impacted soils or 
groundwater immediately adjacent to the proposed area of work (i.e., adjacent to the existing segments of waterline 
identified for replacement). However, a portion of the proposed area of work along the north side of Fisher Avenue in 
Cantonment Area 19 (particularly near the intersection of Fisher Avenue and Smathers Road) has been identified as a 
potential source of PFAS in soil (and possibly groundwater) in this area. A Site Investigation to assess this area for 
PFAS concentrations has been completed, and the presence of PFAS has been identified in soils and groundwater in 
this area. However, the extent of such contamination has not been characterized to date. BEM requires that all soils 
excavated in this area during the course of work be stockpiled (using appropriate cover and siltation control devices) 
for later disposal, and that only clean fill materials be used for backfill and surfacing in the applicable area(s). Native 
soils excavated in potential PFAS areas should NOT be placed into any new excavations. All construction personnel 
should utilize appropriate PPE as necessary to limit skin contact and ingestion of soils or groundwater in this area. See 
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attached Appendix A "FTIG Utility Mapping" dated 10.06.2020 for potentially affected areas.

         Item 19 -   Surveys and Documentation. A formal written project specifications manual will not be required, but 
material specifications are required. Plan and profile drawings for the entire piping alignment are required. Surveyed 
topography shall be a minimum of 40 feet in width to show the existing surface elevations for the proposed piping 
alignment. Soils investigations, test borings and geological reports are to be done only as required by the Department 
of Environmental Protection. Land title clearances and easement plats are not required. Based on the general project 
scope, the Cultural Resources Manager does not anticipate the need for additional archaeological or other cultural 
resources assessments at this time.  However, if a potential archaeological, tribal, or other cultural resource is 
discovered during construction activities ("inadvertent discovery"), all work must cease immediately, and the cultural 
resource manager should be contacted to determine if additional archaeological or other surveys will be needed. Based 
on the general scope, approximately seven locations within the project area will include a stream crossing and/or 
potential disturbance of associated wetlands.  The potentially affected locations are shown on attached Appendix B 
"FTIG Utility Mapping" dated 10.06.2020.  Wildlife/natural resources studies sufficient to obtain any permits related 
to disturbance of these areas (e.g., wetland delineation, bog turtle surveys, etc.) are the responsibility of the chosen 
contractor.

         Item 20 -   The graphical interface central monitoring system will be located in Building 11-19.  Monitoring will 
be done only at the two supply water connection vaults. 

          Item 21 -   Radio frequency must be 900 MHZ Band; this band is not required to be licensed.

         Item 22 -   For scope of water service connections, see attached Appendix C "FTIG Utility Mapping" dated 
10.06.2020. Water service connections will be replaced from main to hydrants and valves as indicated.  All other 
connections that are encountered will be replaced or extended to connect to new main. In no case does this require 
extensions across the roadway paralleling the main distribution line. The DBC shall be responsible for completing a 
comprehensive design for the Water Distribution Monitoring System; see Technical Scope Paragraph 2.9.

          Item 23 -   For locations of existing utilities, see attached Appendix D "General Utilities Mapping" dated 
10.06.2020.

          Item 24 -   Where possible, the DBC shall maintain a minimum 25-foot buffer for all construction activities from 
all wetland and stream features, except where necessary to complete the project. Permitting for stream crossings and 
other water features (e.g., wetlands) will be the responsibility of the contractor; copies of all permitting materials and 
related correspondence should be submitted to BEM as they are prepared.  Refer to attached Appendices A and B 
"FTIG Utility Mapping" dated 10.06.2020.  

     
 



Request for Proposal Notice to Proposers - 2 

Department of General Services DGS C-0962-0034 Phase 1 

August 28, 2020 

NOTICE TO PROPOSERS 

The following Project is being released utilizing the Request for Proposal Contracting 

Method of Procurement by the Department of General Services, where DGS will 

consider technical qualifications, costs, and Small Diverse Business (SDB) and Veteran 

Business Enterprise (VBE) participation 

Proposals received by the Department of General Services after the Proposal 

Submission Deadline will be rejected.  It is the responsibility of each Proposer to ensure 

that its proposal is received by the Department of General Services prior to the Proposal 

Submission Deadline, regardless of method of delivery used.  

Proposals delivered in person by the Proposer or through an authorized representative 

will be received by the Proposal Contact Person from individuals presenting picture 

identification on behalf of the Proposer. 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project: DGS C-0962-0034 Phase 1 

Project Location: Fort Indiantown Gap 

Annville, Lebanon County, PA 17003 

Construction Manager 

(prepared Bridging 

Documents): 

Daniel J. Conley 

Department of Military and Veterans Affairs (DMVA) 

Agency: Department of Military and Veterans Affairs 

Brief Description: The scope of this project includes the design, permitting and 

construction for the replacement of a portion of the water 

distribution system at Fort Indiantown Gap. 

Pre-Proposal 

Conference: 

Tuesday, September 15, 2020 9:00am, Fort Indiantown Gap 

Military Base. Meet at Building 11-64. All personnel who 

will attend the meeting must go through the screening 

checkpoint on FTIG before coming to the office. The 

checkpoint includes a series of questions and they log your 

name as being on post for that day. They will provide you 

with a sticker that you must wear on your shirt during the 

entire duration of your time on FTIG.  

All contractors who have secured contract documents are 

invited and urged to attend this Pre-Proposal Conference. 

corrected: October 2, 2020



Request for Proposal Notice to Proposers - 3 

Department of General Services DGS C-0962-0034 Phase 1 

Request for Proposal 

Coordinator /   Issuing 

Office: 

Toni Dolan 

Department of General Services 

2nd Floor Arsenal Building 

1800 Herr Street 

Harrisburg, PA 17103 

Phone:  717.787.6141 

Email: tdolan@pa.gov 

Contract Number: DGS C-0962-0034.1 Phase 1 Design-Build Contractor 

Bid Guaranty: A Bid Guaranty is not required for this Project. 

Contract Duration: 545 Calendar Days

Proposal Period: 90 days allowed from Proposal submission deadline until 

Notice of Selection. 

Liquidated Damages: .1 Design-Build Contractor = $1,250.00 Per Day 

List of Proposers: List of Potential Proposers along with Proposal Results can be 

found at: www.dgs.pa.gov > Businesses > Design & 

Construction > Bidding 

ALL BASE BIDS SDB AND VBE PARTICIPATION GOALS 

SDB GOAL VBE GOAL 

.1 Design Build Contractor BB#1 = 9.0% BB#1 = 3.0% 

.1 Design Build Contractor BB#2 = 9.0% BB#2 = 3.0% 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

Activity Date 

Notice to Proposers/Issue RFP August 28, 2020 

Pre-Proposal Conference September 15, 2020 

Deadline to Submit Questions October 15, 2020 

Deadline to Issue Addendums Amending the RFP October 22, 2020

Proposal Submission Deadline October 29, 2020 @ 2:00pm



Request for Proposal Notice to Proposers - 4 

Department of General Services DGS C-0962-0034 Phase 1 

MANDATORY Vendor Registration:  All Proposers must have a Current and Active 

Vendor Number.  Proposal Documents require Proposers to provide this number.  

Register at www.pasupplierportal.state.pa.us. 

 

E-Builder Enterprise Software (e-Builder):  Proposers are required to create a user 

profile within e-Builder by clicking on the Advertisement located in PA e-marketplace at 

www.emarketplace.state.pa.us.  A video tutorial is available on the e-Builder site for first 

time users to learn how to Navigate e-Builder.  Technical support is also available via 

email at support@e-builder.net or by phone at 1.888.288.5717. 

 

http://www.pasupplierportal.state.pa.us/
http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/
mailto:support@e-builder.net
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Figure B:  Potential Stream Crossing/Wetland Impact Locations
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement Project -

DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap

East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County, Pennsylvania
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Figure C1:  Area 17 Water System Details
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement

Project - DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2

Replace:
10 Water Valves
7 Water Hydrants
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Figure C2:  Area 12 Water System Details
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement

Project - DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2

Replace:
24 Water Valves
5 Water Hydrants
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Figure C3:  Area 10 Water System Details
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement

Project - DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2

Replace:
4 Water Valves

1 Water Hydrant



!?
!?!?

!?
!? !?

!?!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?!?

!?!?!?
!?!?

!?

!?!?
!?
!?

!?

!?
!?
!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!? !?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?!?!?

!?

!?
!?!?

!?!?

!?

!?
!?
!?

!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?

!? !?!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?!?
!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

")

")

")

")
")

")

")

")

")

")
")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")
")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

!?
!?!?

!?
!? !?

!?
!?

!?
!?

!?
!?!?

")

")

")")
!? Clement Avenue

Rickards Road
Ila

nd
 Av

en
ue

Fisher Avenue

Area 9
Area 0

Area 7

Area 19

Area 6

Area 5

The information on this map is for planning purposes only.  This
 information is not intended for use as legal survey data, for legal
 boundary definitions, regulatory interpretation, or parcel-level
analysis. FTIG/PAARNG/PADMVA are not legally responsible for
 interpretations made from this map product.  No warranty is made 
by FTIG/PAARNG/PADMVA as to the accuracy, reliability, or 
completeness of these data for individual or aggregate use with 
other data. This map is a living document, in that it is intended to
 change as new data become available and are incorporated into
 the Enterprise GIS database.

¯

0 250 500 750 1,000125 Feet

Legend
Installation Boundary
Cantonment Area
Existing Potable Water
Lines

!? Water Valve

!?
Water Valve to be
Replaced

") Water Hydrant

")
Water Hydrant to be
Replaced
Buildings
Roads

PENNSYLVANIA
WGS 1984 UTM Zone 18N
Prepared by PADMVA-OFE-BEM
COMM:  (717) 861-2634
Created:  30 September 2020 DRV
Sources:  PADMVA-BEM-GIS

Figure C4A:  Area 19 West Water System Details
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement

Project - DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2

Replace:
14 Water Valves
4 Water Hydrants
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Figure C4B:  Area 19 East Water System Details
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement

Project - DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2

Replace:
7 Water Valves

5 Water Hydrants



!?

!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?
!?

!?

!?

!?!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?!?")

")

")

")

")

!? !?

!?

!?

!?

")

Fisher Avenue

Area 16

Area 19

Area 3
Area 4

The information on this map is for planning purposes only.  This
 information is not intended for use as legal survey data, for legal
 boundary definitions, regulatory interpretation, or parcel-level
analysis. FTIG/PAARNG/PADMVA are not legally responsible for
 interpretations made from this map product.  No warranty is made 
by FTIG/PAARNG/PADMVA as to the accuracy, reliability, or 
completeness of these data for individual or aggregate use with 
other data. This map is a living document, in that it is intended to
 change as new data become available and are incorporated into
 the Enterprise GIS database.

¯

0 100 200 300 40050 Feet

Legend
Installation Boundary
Cantonment Area
Existing Potable Water
Lines

!? Water Valve

!?
Water Valve to be
Replaced

") Water Hydrant

")
Water Hydrant to be
Replaced
Buildings
Roads

PENNSYLVANIA
WGS 1984 UTM Zone 18N
Prepared by PADMVA-OFE-BEM
COMM:  (717) 861-2634
Created:  30 September 2020 DRV
Sources:  PADMVA-BEM-GIS

Figure C5:  Area 16 Water System Details
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement Project -

DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2

Replace:
3 Water Valves

1 Water Hydrant
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Figure C6:  Area 8 Water System Details
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement Project -

DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2

Replace:
3 Water Valves

0 Water Hydrants
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Figure C7:  Areas 5 and 6 Water System Details
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement Project -

DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2

Replace:
10 Water Valves
1 Water Hydrant
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Figure C8:  Area 4 Water System Details
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement Project -

DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2

Replace:
16 Water Valves
2 Water Hydrants
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Figure C9:  Area 3 Water System Details
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement Project -

DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania
Figure C8:  Area 4 Water System Details

FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement Project -
DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1

National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2

Replace:
11 Water Valves
1 Water Hydrant
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Figure D1:  Area 17 General Utilities Map
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line Replacement

Project - DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2
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Figure D2:  Area 12 General Utilities Map
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement

Project - DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2
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Figure D3:  Area 10 General Utilities Map
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement

Project - DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2
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Figure D4A:  Area 19 West General Utilities Map
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement

Project - DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2
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Figure D4B:  Area 19 East General Utilities Map
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement

Project - DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2
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Figure D5:  Area 16 General Utilities Map
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement Project -

DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement

Base Bid 1
Base Bid 2
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Figure D6:  Area 8 General Utilities Map
FTIG Potable Water Distribution Line  Replacement Project -

DGS Project 962-34, Phase 1
National Guard Training Center - Fort Indiantown Gap
East Hanover and Union Townships, Lebanon County,

Pennsylvania

Potable Water Line Segments 
Proposed for Replacement
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THE NOTARIZATION MUST BE COMPLETED ON FIRST AND LAST SUBMISSIONS ONLY. ALL OTHER 

INFORMATION MUST BE COMPLETED WEEKLY. 

*FRINGE BEI\1EFITS EXPLANATION (FB): Bona fide benefits contribution, except those required by Federal or State
Law (unemployment tax, workers' compensation, income taxes, etc.)

Please specify the type of benefits provided and contributions per hour: 

1) Medical or hospital care
---------------------------------

2) Pension or retirement _________________________________ _
3) Life insurance

------------------------------------

4) Disability-----------------------------------
5) Vacation, holiday

-----------------------------------

6) Other (please specify) ------------------------------

CERTIFIED STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

1. The undersigned, having executed a contract with-----,,--__,,.,,---,,..,..,......,....,...,-:=-.,.......----,---,----,-,-�-------(AwARDING AGENCY, CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR) 

------------- for the construction of the above-identified project, acknowledges that: 
(a) The prevailing wage requirements and the predetennined rates are included in the aforesaid contract.

(b) Correction of any infractions of the aforesaid conditions is the contractor's or subcontractor's responsibility.

(c) It is the contractor's responsibility to include the Prevailing Wage requirements and the predetermined rates in
any subcontract or lower tier subcontract for this project.

2. The undersigned certifies that:
(a) Neither he nor his firm, nor any firm, corporation or partnership in which he or his firm has an interest is debarred

by the Secretary of Labor and Industry pursuant to Section ll(e) of the PA Prevailing Wage Act, Act of August
15, 1961, P .L. 987 as amended, 43 P.S.§ 165-ll(e).

(b) No part of this contract has been or will be subcontracted to any subcontractor if such subcontractor or any firm,
corporation or partnership in which such subcontractor has an interest is debarred pursuant to the aforementioned
statute.

3. The undersigned certifies that:
(a) the legal name and the business address of the contractor or subcontractor are:

(b) The undersigned is: D a single proprietorship D a corporation organized in the state of _____ _ 
D a partnership D other organization (describe) -----------

( c) The name, title and address of the owner, partners or officers of the contractor/subcontractor are:

NAME TITLE ADDRESS 

The willful falsification of any of the above statements may subject the contractor to civil or criminal prosecution, provided in 
thePAPrevailingWageAct of August 15, 1961, P.L. 987, as amended,August 9, 1963, 43 P.S. § 165.1 through 165.17. 

(DATE) (SIGNATURE) 

(TITLE) 

SEAL Taken, sworn and subscribed before me this ___ Day 

of __________ A.O., __ _ LLC-25 REV 10-03 (Page 2) 



ASBESTOS REMOVAL -- ASBESTOS WORKER-LABORER 

(http://www.dli.pa.gov/I ndividuals/Labor-Management-Relations/llc/prevailing

wage/Pages/ASBESTOS-REMOVAL----ASBESTOS-WORKER

LABORER.aspx#ctlOO _PlaceHolderMain _ SiteMapPath 1 _ Skiplink)DLI 

(http://www.dli.pa.gov/Pages/default.aspx) > Individuals 

Page I of2 

(http://www.dli.pa.gov/I ndividuals/Pages/default.aspx) > Labor Management Relations 

(http://www.dli.pa.gov/lndividuals/Labor-Management-Relations/Pages/default.aspx) > 

Labor Law Compliance (http://www.dli.pa.gov/lndividuals/Labor-Management

Relations/llc/Pages/Labor-Law-Compliance.aspx) > Prevailing Wage 

(http://www.dli.pa.gov/lndividuals/Labor-Management-Re[ations/llc/prevailing

wage/Pages/default.aspx) > ASBESTOS REMOVAL -- ASBESTOS WORKER

LABORER 

ASBESTOS REMOVAL--ASBESTOS 

WORKER/LABORER 

AMENDED FOR 11/21/97 

The removal of asbestos containing materials should be handled as follows: 

1. The removal of all insulation materials, whether they contain asbestos or not,

from mechanical systems (pipes, boilers, ducts, flues, breachings, etc.) will be 

recognized as work to be classified as Asbestos Worker. 

2. On all mechanical systems (pipes, boilers, ducts, flues, breachings, etc.) that

are going to be scrapped, the removal of all insulating material, whether they 

contain asbestos or not, will be classified as Laborers. 

3. The removal of all asbestos containing materials from walls, ceilings, floors,

columns and all other non-mechanical structures and surfaces, etc., will be held 

to the classification of Laborers (with the exception of roofing materials). 

4. The term "removal" shall not include sealing, labeling and dropping of scrap

material into appropriate containers. After the drop, the final disposal will be 

classified as Laborers. 

http://www.dli.pa.gov/Individuals/Labor-Management-Relations/Ile/prevailing-wage/Page... 2/12/2018 



ASBESTOS REMOVAL -- ASBESTOS WORKER-LABORER Page 2 of2 

5. The loading at the designated area of all materials that have been removed,

bagged and tagged, as well as clean-up and all unloading, burying and other work 

required at the disposal site should be classified as Laborers. 

� pennsylvanta (HTTP://WWW.DLI.PA.GOV/) 

·� DEPARTMENT OF LABOR&JNDUSTRV

CONTACT US 

(HTTP://WWW.DL1.PA.GOV/PAGES/CONTACT

US.ASPX#.V2L5A7GRJHE) 

http://www.dli.pa.gov/Individuals/Labor-Management-Relations/Uc/prevailing-wage/Page. .. 2/12/2018 



Project Name: Fort Indiantown Gap - New Water Line

Awarding Agency: Military and Veterans' Affairs

Contract Award Date: 1/27/2021

Serial Number: 20-06104

Project Classification: Highway

Determination Date: 10/1/2020

Assigned Field Office: Harrisburg

Field Office Phone Number: (717)787-4763

Toll Free Phone Number: (800)932-0665

Project County: Lebanon County

BUREAU OF LABOR LAW COMPLIANCE
PREVAILING WAGES PROJECT RATES

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Department of Labor & Industry
Report Date: 10/2/2020 Page 1 of 13



Project: 20-06104 - Building Effective
Date

Expiration
Date

Hourly Rate Fringe
Benefits

Total

Asbestos & Insulation Workers 6/26/2017 $32.00 $26.51 $58.51

Asbestos & Insulation Workers 7/2/2018 $32.80 $26.76 $59.56

Asbestos & Insulation Workers 7/2/2019 $33.80 $27.26 $61.06

Asbestos & Insulation Workers 6/29/2020 $34.80 $28.01 $62.81

Boilermaker (Commercial, Institutional, and Minor
Repair Work)

3/1/2017 $28.52 $18.22 $46.74

Boilermaker (Commercial, Institutional, and Minor
Repair Work)

3/1/2018 $29.52 $18.22 $47.74

Boilermaker (Commercial, Institutional, and Minor
Repair Work)

1/1/2019 $29.26 $18.48 $47.74

Boilermakers 1/1/2018 $46.26 $33.36 $79.62

Boilermakers 3/1/2018 $45.89 $33.73 $79.62

Boilermakers 1/1/2019 $45.51 $34.11 $79.62

Boilermakers 8/1/2019 $47.21 $34.11 $81.32

Bricklayer (Pointer, Cleaner, Caulker, Cement Mason,
Plasterer, Tile Setter)

5/1/2018 $28.15 $22.45 $50.60

Bricklayer (Pointer, Cleaner, Caulker, Cement Mason,
Plasterer, Tile Setter)

5/1/2018 $29.40 $20.35 $49.75

Bricklayers, Stone Masons, Pointers, Caulkers,
Cleaners

5/1/2017 $32.54 $16.06 $48.60

Bricklayers, Stone Masons, Pointers, Caulkers,
Cleaners

5/1/2018 $32.95 $16.45 $49.40

Bricklayers, Stone Masons, Pointers, Caulkers,
Cleaners

5/1/2019 $33.43 $16.87 $50.30

Bricklayers, Stone Masons, Pointers, Caulkers,
Cleaners

5/3/2020 $33.99 $17.31 $51.30

Bricklayers, Stone Masons, Pointers, Caulkers,
Cleaners

5/1/2021 $34.62 $17.78 $52.40

Carpenters, Drywall Hangers, Framers, Instrument
Men, Lathers, Soft Floor Layers

6/1/2017 $28.88 $15.75 $44.63

Carpenters, Drywall Hangers, Framers, Instrument
Men, Lathers, Soft Floor Layers

6/1/2018 $29.53 $16.20 $45.73

Carpenters, Drywall Hangers, Framers, Instrument
Men, Lathers, Soft Floor Layers

6/1/2019 $30.18 $16.65 $46.83

Carpenters, Drywall Hangers, Framers, Instrument
Men, Lathers, Soft Floor Layers

6/1/2020 $30.88 $17.10 $47.98

Carpenters, Drywall Hangers, Framers, Instrument
Men, Lathers, Soft Floor Layers

6/1/2021 $31.77 $17.41 $49.18

Cement Finishers 5/1/2017 $27.20 $22.45 $49.65

Cement Masons 5/1/2019 $29.05 $22.50 $51.55

Cement Masons 5/1/2020 $30.90 $20.80 $51.70

Cement Masons 5/1/2020 $29.85 $22.70 $52.55

Drywall Finisher 5/1/2017 $23.30 $12.39 $35.69

Drywall Finisher 5/1/2019 $23.82 $14.27 $38.09

Drywall Finisher 5/1/2020 $23.94 $15.30 $39.24

Electricians 6/1/2017 $30.00 $23.06 $53.06

Electricians 6/1/2018 $30.60 $23.63 $54.23

Electricians 6/1/2019 $31.60 $24.37 $55.97

Electricians 6/1/2020 $32.50 $25.20 $57.70

Electricians 6/1/2021 $32.50 $26.90 $59.40

BUREAU OF LABOR LAW COMPLIANCE
PREVAILING WAGES PROJECT RATES

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Department of Labor & Industry
Report Date: 10/2/2020 Page 2 of 13



Project: 20-06104 - Building Effective
Date

Expiration
Date

Hourly Rate Fringe
Benefits

Total

Elevator Constructor 1/1/2018 $45.35 $33.00 $78.35

Elevator Constructor 1/1/2020 $48.33 $39.11 $87.44

Elevator Mechanic 1/1/2019 $46.80 $34.13 $80.93

Glazier 5/1/2017 $25.63 $11.45 $37.08

Glazier 5/1/2018 $25.63 $11.95 $37.58

Glazier 5/1/2019 $25.63 $12.45 $38.08

Glazier 5/1/2020 $25.63 $12.95 $38.58

Glazier 5/1/2021 $25.63 $13.45 $39.08

Iron Workers (Bridge, Structural Steel, Ornamental,
Precast, Reinforcing)

7/1/2017 $31.33 $28.42 $59.75

Iron Workers (Bridge, Structural Steel, Ornamental,
Precast, Reinforcing)

7/1/2018 $32.53 $28.42 $60.95

Iron Workers (Bridge, Structural Steel, Ornamental,
Precast, Reinforcing)

7/1/2019 $32.76 $29.88 $62.64

Iron Workers (Bridge, Structural Steel, Ornamental,
Precast, Reinforcing)

7/1/2020 $33.76 $30.13 $63.89

Laborers (Class 01 - See notes) 5/1/2017 $21.57 $15.04 $36.61

Laborers (Class 01 - See notes) 5/1/2018 4/30/2019 $22.07 $15.59 $37.66

Laborers (Class 01 - See notes) 5/1/2019 4/30/2020 $23.02 $15.92 $38.94

Laborers (Class 01 - See notes) 5/1/2020 $23.77 $16.22 $39.99

Laborers (Class 02 - See notes) 5/1/2017 $23.57 $15.04 $38.61

Laborers (Class 02 - See notes) 5/1/2018 $24.07 $15.59 $39.66

Laborers (Class 02 - See notes) 5/1/2019 4/30/2020 $25.02 $15.92 $40.94

Laborers (Class 02 - See notes) 5/1/2020 $25.77 $16.22 $41.99

Laborers (Class 02 - see notes) 5/1/2018 4/30/2019 $24.07 $15.59 $39.66

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 5/1/2017 $23.29 $15.58 $38.87

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 5/1/2018 4/30/2019 $23.84 $15.88 $39.72

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 5/1/2019 $24.89 $15.69 $40.58

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 5/3/2020 $25.79 $15.99 $41.78

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 5/2/2021 $26.69 $15.99 $42.68

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 5/1/2022 $27.64 $15.99 $43.63

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 4/30/2023 $28.24 $16.59 $44.83

Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 5/1/2017 $24.79 $15.58 $40.37

Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 5/1/2018 4/30/2019 $25.34 $15.59 $40.93

Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 5/1/2019 $26.39 $15.69 $42.08

Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 5/3/2020 $27.29 $15.99 $43.28

Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 5/2/2021 $28.19 $15.99 $44.18

Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 5/1/2022 $29.14 $15.99 $45.13

Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 4/30/2023 $29.74 $16.59 $46.33

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 5/1/2017 $25.29 $15.58 $40.87

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 5/1/2018 4/30/2019 $25.84 $15.59 $41.43

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 5/1/2019 $26.89 $15.69 $42.58

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 5/3/2020 $27.79 $15.99 $43.78

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 5/2/2021 $28.69 $15.99 $44.68

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 5/1/2022 $29.64 $15.99 $45.63

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 4/30/2023 $30.24 $16.59 $46.83

BUREAU OF LABOR LAW COMPLIANCE
PREVAILING WAGES PROJECT RATES

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Department of Labor & Industry
Report Date: 10/2/2020 Page 3 of 13



Project: 20-06104 - Building Effective
Date

Expiration
Date

Hourly Rate Fringe
Benefits

Total

Laborers (Class 06 - See notes) 5/1/2017 $22.92 $15.04 $37.96

Laborers (Class 06 - See notes) 5/1/2018 4/30/2019 $23.42 $15.59 $39.01

Laborers (Class 06 - See notes) 5/1/2019 4/20/2020 $24.37 $15.92 $40.29

Laborers (Class 06 - See notes) 5/1/2020 $25.12 $16.22 $41.34

Marble Mason 5/1/2017 $29.27 $15.62 $44.89

Marble Mason 5/1/2018 $29.88 $16.01 $45.89

Marble Mason 5/1/2019 $30.46 $16.43 $46.89

Marble Mason 5/1/2020 $31.02 $16.87 $47.89

Marble Mason 5/1/2021 $31.55 $17.34 $48.89

Millwright 5/1/2017 $33.79 $18.16 $51.95

Millwright 5/1/2018 4/30/2019 $34.41 $18.64 $53.05

Millwright 5/1/2019 4/30/2020 $35.30 $18.90 $54.20

Millwright 5/1/2020 $36.04 $19.31 $55.35

Operators (Building, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $35.24 $24.58 $59.82

Operators (Building, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $36.78 $25.03 $61.81

Operators (Building, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $36.78 $27.03 $63.81

Operators (Building, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $38.32 $27.49 $65.81

Operators (Building, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $39.87 $27.94 $67.81

Operators (Building, Class 01A - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $37.49 $25.23 $62.72

Operators (Building, Class 01A - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $39.03 $25.69 $64.72

Operators (Building, Class 01A - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $39.03 $27.69 $66.72

Operators (Building, Class 01A - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $40.57 $28.15 $68.72

Operators (Building, Class 01A - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $42.12 $28.60 $70.72

Operators (Building, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $34.96 $24.49 $59.45

Operators (Building, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $36.50 $24.95 $61.45

Operators (Building, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $36.50 $26.94 $63.44

Operators (Building, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $38.05 $27.39 $65.44

Operators (Building, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $39.59 $27.85 $67.44

Operators (Building, Class 02A - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $37.21 $25.16 $62.37

Operators (Building, Class 02A - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $38.75 $25.61 $64.36

Operators (Building, Class 02A - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $38.75 $27.61 $66.36

Operators (Building, Class 02A - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $40.30 $28.06 $68.36

Operators (Building, Class 02A - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $41.84 $28.52 $70.36

Operators (Building, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $32.23 $23.68 $55.91

Operators (Building, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $33.78 $24.12 $57.90

Operators (Building, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $33.78 $26.13 $59.91

Operators (Building, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $35.32 $26.59 $61.91

Operators (Building, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $36.87 $27.04 $63.91

Operators (Building, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $30.33 $22.12 $52.45

Operators (Building, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $32.63 $23.80 $56.43

Operators (Building, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $32.63 $25.81 $58.44

Operators (Building, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $34.18 $26.26 $60.44

Operators (Building, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $35.72 $26.72 $62.44

Operators (Building, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $29.87 $21.99 $51.86

BUREAU OF LABOR LAW COMPLIANCE
PREVAILING WAGES PROJECT RATES

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Department of Labor & Industry
Report Date: 10/2/2020 Page 4 of 13



Project: 20-06104 - Building Effective
Date

Expiration
Date

Hourly Rate Fringe
Benefits

Total

Operators (Building, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $32.18 $23.69 $55.87

Operators (Building, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $32.19 $25.67 $57.86

Operators (Building, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $33.73 $26.13 $59.86

Operators (Building, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $35.27 $26.59 $61.86

Operators (Building, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $29.00 $21.72 $50.72

Operators (Building, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $31.31 $23.41 $54.72

Operators (Building, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $31.31 $25.41 $56.72

Operators (Building, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $32.86 $25.86 $58.72

Operators (Building, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $34.40 $26.32 $60.72

Operators (Building, Class 07A- See Notes) 5/1/2017 $42.44 $28.13 $70.57

Operators (Building, Class 07A- See Notes) 5/1/2018 $44.29 $28.68 $72.97

Operators (Building, Class 07A- See Notes) 5/1/2019 $44.60 $30.77 $75.37

Operators (Building, Class 07A- See Notes) 5/1/2020 $46.46 $31.31 $77.77

Operators (Building, Class 07A- See Notes) 5/1/2021 $48.31 $31.86 $80.17

Operators (Building, Class 07B- See Notes) 5/1/2017 $42.09 $28.03 $70.12

Operators (Building, Class 07B- See Notes) 5/1/2018 $43.95 $28.58 $72.53

Operators (Building, Class 07B- See Notes) 5/1/2019 $44.26 $30.66 $74.92

Operators (Building, Class 07B- See Notes) 5/1/2020 $46.11 $31.21 $77.32

Operators (Building, Class 07B- See Notes) 5/1/2021 $47.96 $31.77 $79.73

Painters Class 1 (see notes) 5/1/2017 $27.25 $18.17 $45.42

Painters Class 1 (see notes) 5/1/2018 $23.92 $14.37 $38.29

Painters Class 1 (see notes) 5/1/2019 $24.57 $15.22 $39.79

Painters Class 1 (see notes) 5/1/2020 $25.30 $15.99 $41.29

Painters Class 2 (see notes) 5/1/2017 $30.15 $18.17 $48.32

Painters Class 2 (see notes) 5/1/2018 $26.05 $14.37 $40.42

Painters Class 2 (see notes) 5/1/2019 $26.70 $15.22 $41.92

Painters Class 2 (see notes) 5/1/2020 $27.43 $15.99 $43.42

Painters Class 3 (see notes) 5/1/2017 $36.25 $18.17 $54.42

Painters Class 3 (see notes) 5/1/2018 $31.80 $14.37 $46.17

Painters Class 3 (see notes) 5/1/2020 $33.18 $15.99 $49.17

Pile Driver Divers (Building, Heavy, Highway) 1/1/2017 $49.13 $17.95 $67.08

Pile Driver Divers (Building, Heavy, Highway) 1/1/2020 $53.10 $19.70 $72.80

Pile Driver Divers (Building, Heavy, Highway) 1/1/2021 $54.75 $20.10 $74.85

Pile Driver Divers (Building, Heavy, Highway) 1/1/2022 $56.40 $20.50 $76.90

Piledrivers 1/1/2018 $33.55 $18.55 $52.10

Piledrivers 1/1/2019 $34.30 $19.30 $53.60

Piledrivers 1/1/2020 $35.40 $19.70 $55.10

Piledrivers 1/1/2021 $36.50 $20.10 $56.60

Piledrivers 1/1/2022 $37.60 $20.50 $58.10

Plasterers (Use Cement Finisher Rates) 5/1/2018 $25.88 $20.58 $46.46

Plasterers (Use Cement Masons) 5/1/2018 $29.00 $21.30 $50.30

Plasterers 5/1/2017 $25.03 $20.58 $45.61

Plasterers 5/1/2019 $26.73 $20.63 $47.36

Plasterers 5/1/2020 $27.48 $20.83 $48.31
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Plumber/Pipefitter 5/1/2017 $35.82 $24.51 $60.33

Plumber/Pipefitter 5/1/2018 $36.87 $25.26 $62.13

Plumber/Pipefitter 5/1/2019 $37.52 $26.41 $63.93

Plumber/Pipefitter 5/1/2020 $37.52 $28.21 $65.73

plumber 8/1/2020 $47.43 $32.86 $80.29

Roofers (Composition) 5/1/2017 $36.15 $30.22 $66.37

Roofers (Composition) 5/1/2018 $37.15 $31.27 $68.42

Roofers (Composition) 5/1/2019 $38.35 $31.80 $70.15

Roofers (Composition) 5/1/2020 $39.50 $32.30 $71.80

Roofers (Shingle) 5/1/2016 $25.70 $19.17 $44.87

Roofers (Shingle) 5/1/2019 $28.50 $20.87 $49.37

Roofers (Shingle) 5/1/2020 $29.50 $21.25 $50.75

Roofers (Slate & Tile) 5/1/2016 $28.70 $19.17 $47.87

Roofers (Slate & Tile) 5/1/2018 $30.50 $20.37 $50.87

Roofers (Slate & Tile) 5/1/2019 $31.50 $20.87 $52.37

Roofers (Slate & Tile) 5/1/2020 $32.50 $21.25 $53.75

Sheet Metal Workers 6/1/2016 $33.60 $33.43 $67.03

Sheet Metal Workers 6/1/2017 $33.98 $35.40 $69.38

Sheet Metal Workers 6/1/2018 $34.78 $36.45 $71.23

Sheet Metal Workers 6/1/2019 $36.08 $37.65 $73.73

Sheet Metal Workers 6/1/2020 $37.26 $38.97 $76.23

Sheet Metal Workers 6/1/2021 $36.08 $42.65 $78.73

Sprinklerfitters 4/1/2017 $37.40 $21.74 $59.14

Sprinklerfitters 4/1/2018 $38.80 $22.74 $61.54

Sprinklerfitters 4/1/2020 $38.90 $26.42 $65.32

Steamfitters 5/1/2020 $51.73 $37.07 $88.80

Terrazzo Finisher 5/1/2017 $31.64 $15.62 $47.26

Terrazzo Finisher 5/1/2018 $32.35 $15.91 $48.26

Terrazzo Finisher 5/1/2019 $33.04 $16.22 $49.26

Terrazzo Finisher 5/1/2020 $32.26 $18.48 $50.74

Terrazzo Grinder 5/1/2020 $32.95 $18.48 $51.43

Terrazzo Mechanics 5/1/2020 $32.91 $20.11 $53.02

Terrazzo Setter 5/1/2017 $30.63 $18.85 $49.48

Terrazzo Setter 5/1/2018 $31.23 $19.25 $50.48

Terrazzo Setter 5/1/2019 $31.81 $19.67 $51.48

Tile & Marble Finisher 5/1/2017 $26.89 $13.86 $40.75

Tile & Marble Finisher 5/1/2018 $27.60 $14.15 $41.75

Tile & Marble Finisher 5/1/2019 $28.29 $14.46 $42.75

Tile & Marble Finisher 5/1/2020 $29.00 $14.75 $43.75

Tile & Marble Finisher 5/1/2020 $28.96 $14.79 $43.75

Tile & Marble Finisher 5/1/2021 $29.61 $15.14 $44.75

Tile Setter 5/1/2017 $29.27 $15.62 $44.89

Tile Setter 5/1/2018 $29.88 $16.01 $45.89

Tile Setter 5/1/2019 $30.46 $16.43 $46.89
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Tile Setter 5/1/2020 $31.02 $16.87 $47.89

Tile Setter 5/1/2020 $31.02 $16.87 $47.89

Tile Setter 5/1/2021 $31.55 $17.34 $48.89

Truckdriver class 1(see notes) 5/1/2017 $34.47 $0.00 $34.47

Truckdriver class 1(see notes) 5/1/2018 $35.32 $0.00 $35.32

Truckdriver class 1(see notes) 5/1/2019 $36.12 $0.00 $36.12

Truckdriver class 2 (see notes) 5/1/2017 $34.54 $0.00 $34.54

Truckdriver class 2 (see notes) 5/1/2018 $35.39 $0.00 $35.39

Truckdriver class 2 (see notes) 5/1/2019 $36.19 $0.00 $36.19

Truckdriver class 3 (see notes) 5/1/2017 $35.03 $0.00 $35.03

Truckdriver class 3 (see notes) 5/1/2018 $35.88 $0.00 $35.88

Truckdriver class 3 (see notes) 5/1/2019 $36.68 $0.00 $36.68

Window Film / Tint Installer 6/1/2019 $24.52 $12.08 $36.60
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Carpenter 5/1/2018 $30.75 $15.96 $46.71

Carpenter 5/1/2019 $31.51 $16.55 $48.06

Carpenter 5/1/2020 $32.22 $17.19 $49.41

Carpenter 5/1/2021 $33.12 $17.74 $50.86

Carpenters 5/1/2016 $29.67 $14.54 $44.21

Carpenters 5/1/2017 $30.12 $15.34 $45.46

Cement Finishers 1/1/2017 $27.70 $20.20 $47.90

Electric Lineman 5/29/2017 $44.22 $23.94 $68.16

Electric Lineman 5/28/2018 $45.25 $24.94 $70.19

Electric Lineman 5/27/2019 $46.32 $25.97 $72.29

Electric Lineman 6/1/2020 $47.42 $27.04 $74.46

Iron Workers (Bridge, Structural Steel, Ornamental,
Precast, Reinforcing)

7/1/2017 $31.33 $28.42 $59.75

Iron Workers (Bridge, Structural Steel, Ornamental,
Precast, Reinforcing)

7/1/2018 $32.53 $28.42 $60.95

Iron Workers (Bridge, Structural Steel, Ornamental,
Precast, Reinforcing)

7/1/2019 $32.76 $29.88 $62.64

Iron Workers (Bridge, Structural Steel, Ornamental,
Precast, Reinforcing)

7/1/2020 $33.76 $30.13 $63.89

Laborers (Class 01 - See notes) 5/1/2016 $19.81 $15.79 $35.60

Laborers (Class 01 - See notes) 5/1/2017 $20.36 $16.29 $36.65

Laborers (Class 01 - See notes) 5/1/2018 $20.96 $16.79 $37.75

Laborers (Class 01 - See notes) 5/1/2019 $21.61 $17.29 $38.90

Laborers (Class 01 - See notes) 5/1/2020 $22.41 $17.69 $40.10

Laborers (Class 01 - See notes) 5/1/2021 $23.21 $18.09 $41.30

Laborers (Class 01 - See notes) 5/1/2022 $24.01 $18.54 $42.55

Laborers (Class 01 - See notes) 5/1/2023 $24.81 $18.99 $43.80

Laborers (Class 01 - See notes) 5/1/2024 $25.61 $19.49 $45.10

Laborers (Class 02 - See notes) 5/1/2016 $26.43 $15.79 $42.22

Laborers (Class 02 - See notes) 5/1/2017 $26.98 $16.29 $43.27

Laborers (Class 02 - See notes) 5/1/2018 $27.58 $16.79 $44.37

Laborers (Class 02 - See notes) 5/1/2019 $28.23 $17.29 $45.52

Laborers (Class 02 - See notes) 5/1/2020 $29.03 $17.69 $46.72

Laborers (Class 02 - See notes) 5/1/2021 $29.83 $18.09 $47.92

Laborers (Class 02 - See notes) 5/1/2022 $30.63 $18.54 $49.17

Laborers (Class 02 - See notes) 5/1/2023 $31.43 $18.99 $50.42

Laborers (Class 02 - See notes) 5/1/2024 $32.23 $19.49 $51.72

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 5/1/2016 $23.42 $15.79 $39.21

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 5/1/2017 $23.97 $16.29 $40.26

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 5/1/2018 $24.57 $16.79 $41.36

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 5/1/2019 $25.22 $17.29 $42.51

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 5/1/2020 $26.02 $17.69 $43.71

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 5/1/2021 $26.82 $18.09 $44.91

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 5/1/2022 $27.62 $18.54 $46.16

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 5/1/2023 $28.42 $18.99 $47.41

Laborers (Class 03 - See notes) 5/1/2024 $29.22 $19.49 $48.71
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Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 5/1/2016 $23.77 $15.79 $39.56

Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 5/1/2017 $24.32 $16.29 $40.61

Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 5/1/2018 $24.92 $16.79 $41.71

Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 5/1/2019 $25.57 $17.29 $42.86

Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 5/1/2020 $26.37 $17.69 $44.06

Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 5/1/2021 $27.17 $18.09 $45.26

Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 5/1/2022 $27.97 $18.54 $46.51

Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 5/1/2023 $28.77 $18.99 $47.76

Laborers (Class 04 - See notes) 5/1/2024 $29.57 $19.49 $49.06

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 5/1/2016 $24.44 $15.79 $40.23

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 5/1/2017 $24.99 $16.29 $41.28

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 5/1/2018 $25.59 $16.79 $42.38

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 5/1/2019 $26.24 $17.29 $43.53

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 5/1/2020 $27.04 $17.69 $44.73

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 5/1/2021 $27.84 $18.09 $45.93

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 5/1/2022 $28.64 $18.54 $47.18

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 5/1/2023 $29.44 $18.99 $48.43

Laborers (Class 05 - See notes) 5/1/2024 $30.24 $19.49 $49.73

Laborers (Class 06 - See notes) 5/1/2016 $23.86 $15.79 $39.65

Laborers (Class 06 - See notes) 5/1/2017 $24.41 $16.29 $40.70

Laborers (Class 06 - See notes) 5/1/2018 $25.01 $16.79 $41.80

Laborers (Class 06 - See notes) 5/1/2019 $25.66 $17.29 $42.95

Laborers (Class 06 - See notes) 5/1/2020 $26.46 $17.69 $44.15

Laborers (Class 06 - See notes) 5/1/2021 $27.26 $18.09 $45.35

Laborers (Class 06 - See notes) 5/1/2022 $28.06 $18.54 $46.60

Laborers (Class 06 - See notes) 5/1/2023 $28.86 $18.99 $47.85

Laborers (Class 06 - See notes) 5/1/2024 $29.66 $19.49 $49.15

Laborers (Class 07 - See notes) 5/1/2016 $24.15 $15.79 $39.94

Laborers (Class 07 - See notes) 5/1/2017 $24.70 $16.29 $40.99

Laborers (Class 07 - See notes) 5/1/2018 $25.30 $16.79 $42.09

Laborers (Class 07 - See notes) 5/1/2019 $25.95 $17.29 $43.24

Laborers (Class 07 - See notes) 5/1/2020 $26.75 $17.69 $44.44

Laborers (Class 07 - See notes) 5/1/2021 $27.55 $18.09 $45.64

Laborers (Class 07 - See notes) 5/1/2022 $28.35 $18.54 $46.89

Laborers (Class 07 - See notes) 5/1/2023 $29.15 $18.99 $48.14

Laborers (Class 07 - See notes) 5/1/2024 $29.95 $19.49 $49.44

Laborers (Class 08 - See notes) 5/1/2016 $24.63 $15.79 $40.42

Laborers (Class 08 - See notes) 5/1/2017 $25.18 $16.29 $41.47

Laborers (Class 08 - See notes) 5/1/2018 $25.78 $16.79 $42.57

Laborers (Class 08 - See notes) 5/1/2019 $26.43 $17.29 $43.72

Laborers (Class 08 - See notes) 5/1/2020 $27.23 $17.69 $44.92

Laborers (Class 08 - See notes) 5/1/2021 $28.03 $18.09 $46.12

Laborers (Class 08 - See notes) 5/1/2022 $28.83 $18.54 $47.37

Laborers (Class 08 - See notes) 5/1/2023 $29.63 $18.99 $48.62
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Laborers (Class 08 - See notes) 5/1/2024 $30.43 $19.49 $49.92

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2016 $32.16 $22.64 $54.80

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $33.80 $24.16 $57.96

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $35.35 $24.61 $59.96

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $35.35 $26.61 $61.96

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $36.90 $27.06 $63.96

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $38.44 $27.52 $65.96

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 01a - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $36.05 $24.82 $60.87

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 01a - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $37.60 $25.27 $62.87

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 01a - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $37.60 $27.27 $64.87

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 01a - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $39.14 $27.73 $66.87

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 01a - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $40.69 $28.18 $68.87

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $33.52 $24.07 $57.59

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $35.07 $24.52 $59.59

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $35.07 $26.52 $61.59

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $36.61 $26.98 $63.59

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $38.16 $27.43 $65.59

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 02a - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $35.78 $24.72 $60.50

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 02a - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $37.32 $25.19 $62.51

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 02a - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $37.32 $27.19 $64.51

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 02a - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $38.87 $27.64 $66.51

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 02a - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $40.41 $28.10 $68.51

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $30.60 $23.21 $53.81

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $32.15 $23.66 $55.81

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $32.15 $25.66 $57.81

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $33.69 $26.12 $59.81

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $35.24 $26.57 $61.81

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $29.47 $22.88 $52.35

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $31.01 $23.32 $54.33

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $31.01 $25.33 $56.34

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $32.55 $25.79 $58.34

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $34.10 $26.24 $60.34

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $29.02 $22.74 $51.76

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $30.56 $23.20 $53.76

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $30.56 $25.20 $55.76

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $32.11 $25.65 $57.76

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $33.65 $26.11 $59.76

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $28.14 $22.49 $50.63

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $29.68 $22.93 $52.61

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $29.68 $24.94 $54.62

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $31.23 $25.39 $56.62

Operators (Building/Heavy, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $32.77 $25.84 $58.61

Operators (Heavy, Class 07A - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $40.73 $27.63 $68.36

Operators (Heavy, Class 07A - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $42.58 $28.18 $70.76
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Operators (Heavy, Class 07A - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $42.89 $30.27 $73.16

Operators (Heavy, Class 07A - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $44.74 $30.82 $75.56

Operators (Heavy, Class 07A - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $46.59 $31.37 $77.96

Operators (Heavy, Class 07B - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $40.38 $27.53 $67.91

Operators (Heavy, Class 07B - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $42.23 $28.09 $70.32

Operators (Heavy, Class 07B - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $42.54 $30.17 $72.71

Operators (Heavy, Class 07B - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $44.39 $30.72 $75.11

Operators (Heavy, Class 07B - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $46.25 $31.26 $77.51

Operators (Highway, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2016 $32.16 $22.64 $54.80

Operators (Highway, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $32.93 $23.87 $56.80

Operators (Highway, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $34.47 $24.33 $58.80

Operators (Highway, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $34.47 $26.33 $60.80

Operators (Highway, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $37.56 $25.24 $62.80

Operators (Highway, Class 01 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $39.10 $25.70 $64.80

Operators (Highway, Class 01a - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $35.18 $24.56 $59.74

Operators (Highway, Class 01a - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $36.72 $25.01 $61.73

Operators (Highway, Class 01a - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $36.72 $27.01 $63.73

Operators (Highway, Class 01a - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $39.81 $25.92 $65.73

Operators (Highway, Class 01a - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $41.35 $26.38 $67.73

Operators (Highway, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2016 $30.98 $22.31 $53.29

Operators (Highway, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $31.75 $23.53 $55.28

Operators (Highway, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $33.30 $23.98 $57.28

Operators (Highway, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $33.29 $25.99 $59.28

Operators (Highway, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $36.38 $24.90 $61.28

Operators (Highway, Class 02 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $37.93 $25.35 $63.28

Operators (Highway, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2016 $30.28 $22.10 $52.38

Operators (Highway, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $31.06 $23.32 $54.38

Operators (Highway, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $32.59 $23.80 $56.39

Operators (Highway, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $32.59 $25.79 $58.38

Operators (Highway, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $35.69 $24.69 $60.38

Operators (Highway, Class 03 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $37.23 $25.16 $62.39

Operators (Highway, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2016 $29.82 $21.98 $51.80

Operators (Highway, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $30.60 $23.20 $53.80

Operators (Highway, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $32.14 $23.66 $55.80

Operators (Highway, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $32.14 $25.66 $57.80

Operators (Highway, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $35.23 $24.57 $59.80

Operators (Highway, Class 04 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $36.77 $25.03 $61.80

Operators (Highway, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2016 $29.31 $21.83 $51.14

Operators (Highway, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $30.08 $23.06 $53.14

Operators (Highway, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $31.63 $23.51 $55.14

Operators (Highway, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $31.63 $25.51 $57.14

Operators (Highway, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $34.72 $24.42 $59.14

Operators (Highway, Class 05 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $36.26 $24.87 $61.13

Operators (Highway, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2016 $32.40 $22.70 $55.10
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Operators (Highway, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $33.17 $23.94 $57.11

Operators (Highway, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $34.71 $24.39 $59.10

Operators (Highway, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $34.71 $26.39 $61.10

Operators (Highway, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $36.25 $26.85 $63.10

Operators (Highway, Class 06 - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $39.33 $25.78 $65.11

Operators (Highway, Class 06/A - See Notes) 5/1/2016 $34.65 $23.36 $58.01

Operators (Highway, Class 06/A - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $35.42 $24.59 $60.01

Operators (Highway, Class 06/A - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $36.96 $25.05 $62.01

Operators (Highway, Class 06/A - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $36.96 $27.05 $64.01

Operators (Highway, Class 06/A - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $40.04 $25.97 $66.01

Operators (Highway, Class 06/A - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $41.58 $26.43 $68.01

Operators (Highway, Class 07/A - See Notes) 5/1/2016 $38.56 $25.99 $64.55

Operators (Highway, Class 07/A - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $39.66 $27.31 $66.97

Operators (Highway, Class 07/A - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $41.52 $27.84 $69.36

Operators (Highway, Class 07/A - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $41.82 $29.95 $71.77

Operators (Highway, Class 07/A - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $45.23 $28.94 $74.17

Operators (Highway, Class 07/A - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $47.08 $29.49 $76.57

Operators (Highway, Class 07/B - See Notes) 5/1/2016 $37.17 $25.57 $62.74

Operators (Highway, Class 07/B - See Notes) 5/1/2017 $38.25 $26.89 $65.14

Operators (Highway, Class 07/B - See Notes) 5/1/2018 $40.10 $27.44 $67.54

Operators (Highway, Class 07/B - See Notes) 5/1/2019 $40.41 $29.53 $69.94

Operators (Highway, Class 07/B - See Notes) 5/1/2020 $43.81 $28.53 $72.34

Operators (Highway, Class 07/B - See Notes) 5/1/2021 $45.66 $29.08 $74.74

Painters Class 1 (see notes) 5/1/2018 $23.92 $14.37 $38.29

Painters Class 2 (see notes) 5/1/2018 $26.05 $14.37 $40.42

Painters Class 3 (see notes) 5/1/2018 $31.80 $14.37 $46.17

Painters Class 3 (see notes) 5/1/2019 $32.45 $15.22 $47.67

Pile Driver Divers (Building, Heavy, Highway) 1/1/2017 $49.13 $17.95 $67.08

Pile Driver Divers (Building, Heavy, Highway) 1/1/2020 $53.10 $19.70 $72.80

Pile Driver Divers (Building, Heavy, Highway) 1/1/2021 $54.75 $20.10 $74.85

Pile Driver Divers (Building, Heavy, Highway) 1/1/2022 $56.40 $20.50 $76.90

Piledrivers 1/1/2017 $32.75 $17.95 $50.70

Piledrivers 1/1/2018 $33.55 $18.55 $52.10

Piledrivers 5/1/2018 $30.75 $15.96 $46.71

Piledrivers 1/1/2019 $34.30 $19.30 $53.60

Piledrivers 5/1/2019 $31.51 $16.55 $48.06

Piledrivers 5/1/2020 $32.22 $17.19 $49.41

Piledrivers 5/1/2021 $33.12 $17.74 $50.86

Steamfitters (Heavy and Highway - Gas Distribution) 5/1/2017 $40.98 $32.53 $73.51

Steamfitters (Heavy and Highway - Gas Distribution) 5/1/2020 $57.45 $36.93 $94.38

Truckdriver class 1(see notes) 5/1/2016 $33.57 $0.00 $33.57

Truckdriver class 1(see notes) 5/1/2017 $34.47 $0.00 $34.47

Truckdriver class 1(see notes) 5/1/2018 $35.32 $0.00 $35.32

Truckdriver class 1(see notes) 5/1/2019 $36.12 $0.00 $36.12

BUREAU OF LABOR LAW COMPLIANCE
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Project: 20-06104 - Heavy/Highway Effective
Date

Expiration
Date

Hourly Rate Fringe
Benefits

Total

Truckdriver class 2 (see notes) 5/1/2016 $33.64 $0.00 $33.64

Truckdriver class 2 (see notes) 5/1/2017 $34.54 $0.00 $34.54

Truckdriver class 2 (see notes) 5/1/2018 $35.39 $0.00 $35.39

Truckdriver class 2 (see notes) 5/1/2019 $36.19 $0.00 $36.19

Truckdriver class 3 (see notes) 5/1/2016 $34.13 $0.00 $34.13

Truckdriver class 3 (see notes) 5/1/2017 $35.03 $0.00 $35.03

Truckdriver class 3 (see notes) 5/1/2018 $35.88 $0.00 $35.88

Truckdriver class 3 (see notes) 5/1/2019 $36.68 $0.00 $36.68
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Notes for 29 County Building Common 

Journeyperson Laborer 

Adams, Berks, Bradford, Carbon, Columbia, Cumberland, Dauphin, Juniata, Lackawanna, 

Lancaster, Lebanon, Lehigh, Luzerne, Lycoming, Monroe, Montour, Northampton, 

Northumberland, Perry, Pike, Schuylkill, Snyder, Sullivan, Susquehanna, Tioga, Union, Wayne, 

Wyoming & York 

  

The following updates to the Bureau of Labor Law Compliance’s Pennsylvania Building 

Journeyperson Laborer Notes are meant to provide a reference point for uniformity and 

clarity throughout the Commonwealth. The Notes may not be comprehensive, and should 

be read in conformity with the custom and usage of the construction industry in the 

geographic region in which they are utilized. 

CLASS 1 

COMMON JOURNEYPERSON 

1. Cleaning, scrubbing, washing and polishing floors, furniture and windows (including 

through the use of bonding or flying cranes); For marble, granite, and terrazzo, cleaning, 

scrubbing, washing, and polishing after final acceptance. 

2. Demolition of interiors and removal of all debris; 

3. Grading stone and dirt by hand; 

4. Form pinning 

5. Pouring handling, and placing of all concrete and related materials and all cure 

applications; 

6. Sheathing, lagging, and mining; 

7. Cleaning up debris; 

8. Stripping, dismantling, oiling and moving of concrete forms; 

9. Loading, unloading and carrying of reinforced steel; 

10. Handling and distributing lumber and all other building materials, including final strip, 

and including materials used or installed by mechanical trades (e.g., electrician, plumber, 

sheet metal worker, insulator); 

11. Unloading, carrying, distributing and laying of pre-cast concrete slabs and planks; 

12. Wrecking, moving and demolishing underpinning and shoring of all structures; 

13. Using flags and other signaling devices; 

14. Performing landscaping and nursery work; 

15. Serving as a Toolroom Person, hanging tools, delivering tools; 

16. Cleaning precipitators; 

17. Watching for fires; 

18. Operating conveyors; 

19. Using vacuum cleaners of all types (ride or walk-along); 

20. Digging and filling holes and trenches using hand tools; 

21. Driving stakes; 
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22. Ripping out material which is to be discarded; 

23. Cleaning roof removal materials on the ground. Performs roof removal work for 

demolition (Roof removal work for roof replacement is performed by roofers); 

24. Operating a pressure washer; 

25. Unloading, stockpiling and moving materials for carpenters. 

26. Operating power buggies and pumps; 

27. Operating walk along compacting and vibrating equipment; 

28. Operating guniting machines (including potman); 

29. Operating steam jennies; 

30. Using pumps of 2” and under; 

31. Operating burning torches or burners for demolition; 

32. Blasting or assisting with blasting; 

33. Grading and building scaffolds; 

34. Using or assisting with air and hydraulic wagon drills, on or off tracks; 

35. Using walk-along or walk behind lifts and similar machines; 

36. Serving as a drill runner or drill runner’s assistant; 

37. Operating a chipping hammer or similar; 

38. Mixing mortar or operating a mortar mixing machine (regardless of power used, 

including starting and stopping); 

39. Feeding grout machines and operating grout pumps; 

40. Operating concrete saws; 

41. Operating air tracks or assisting; 

42. Laying on nonmetallic (clay, ironstone, terra cotta, vitrified concrete and plastic) pipe and 

the making of joints for the same within five feet outside a building, or to the first joint 

beyond five feet from a building; 

43. Operating jackhammers or concrete busters; 

44. Operating concrete drills and cutting equipment for trenches, flatwork, and wall coring of 

multi-use (common) holes; 

45. Operating walk behind rollers and similar machines 

46. Using a cutting torch for demolition work on steel or other metal structures; 

47. Operating salamanders, smudge pots, propane and kerosene burners and all other heating 

methods; 

48. Operating drills and all other pneumatic and electric hand tools for demolition; 

49. Using concrete mixers, vibrators and pumps; 

50. Operating walk along tamping equipment; 

51. Sandblasting (filling the pot, cleaning up of sand, use of the nozzle) pumps 2” or under 

for demolition; 

52. Using welding torches; 

53. Working on swing scaffold, sling and Bosun chairs. 

CLASS 2 

ASBESTOS REMOVAL 

  

Asbestos Removal. Hazardous & Toxic Waste Removal. Lead & Lead-based paint removal. All 

work in connection with handling, control, removal, abatement, encapsulation or disposal of 
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asbestos &/or toxic waste &/or lead of lead-based paint removal with be assigned to the 

members of the Laborers’ International Union of North America not to be limited to the erection, 

moving, servicing & dismantling of all tools & equipment normally used in the handling, 

control. Removal or encapsulation of hazardous material. This agreement covers work tasks 

associated with any & all safety requirements & final cleanup & disposal of such hazardous 

material. 

CLASS 3 

MASON TENDERS 

  

Mason Tenders- Mixing of Mortar, mortar pumps, caisson work, blast furnaces. Coke ovens and 

all related work. Erection and dismantling of all scaffolding, including tubular frame, manual and 

powered. Climbing scaffold, swing scaffolds, slings, bosun chairs and all associated safety 

protection including barricades, nets and ropes, scaffold weather enclosures; shoring; mortar 

buggies; concrete pumps; walk-behind forklifts; electric welders, torches, compressors, 

generators & the repair and maintenance of same; jackhammers, tampers, cut-off saws and other 

power equipment required for demolition, rotary-hammer drills, electric and pneumatic hand 

tools, transits, levels and lasers, tempering mortar; stocking scaffolds with masonry materials 

including brick, block, mortar, terra cotta, architectural pre-cast concrete, natural stone, 

insulation and mastic, flashing, anchors and ties, rebar, grout, Mobile lifting platform scaffolding 

powered by any power, mode or method; clean-up of all masonry debris. 

CLASS 4 

FORKLIFT LABORER 

  

Operation of rough terrain forklifts & skid-steering loaders. 

CLASS 5 

MASON TENDER CRANE OPERATOR 

  

Pioneer 9000 truck crane and self erecting portable tower crane similar to the POTAIN HDT 80 

CLASS 6 

PLASTERER AND DRYVIT TENDERS 

  

1. Mixing of plaster and dryvit. 

2. Plaster pumps. 

3. Plaster tenders. 

4. Scaffold Builders. 

5. Mobile lifting platform scaffolding, by any power, mode or method. 
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Mixing of plaster and dryvit. Plaster pumps. Plaster tenders. Caisson work. Erection and 

dismantling of all scaffolding, including tubular frame, manual and powered climbing scaffold, 

swing scaffolds, slings, bosun chairs and all associated safety protection including barricades, 

nets and ropes, scaffold weather enclosures; shoring, mortar buggies; concrete pumps; walk-

behind forklifts; electric welders, torches, compressors, generators & the repair and maintenance 

of same; jackhammers, tampers; cut-off saws and other power equipment requires for 

demolition; rotary-hammer drills, electric and pneumatic hand-tools; transits, levels and lasers, 

and the clean up of all plaster debris. 
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Definitions for 29 County Heavy, Highway 

Construction Laborers’ 

Adams, Berks, Bradford, Carbon, Columbia, Cumberland, Dauphin, Juniata, Lackawanna, 

Lancaster, Lebanon, Lehigh, Luzerne, Lycoming, Monroe, Montour, Northampton, 

Northumberland, Perry, Pike, Schuylkill, Snyder, Sullivan, Susquehanna, Tioga, Union, Wayne, 

Wyoming, & York 

Laborers’ Class I 

Flagperson 

Laborers’ Class II 

Hazardous/Toxic/Asbestos Waste Handler, Lead Paint handler 

Laborers’ Class III 

Asphalt Tamper, Concrete Pitman & Puddler, Highway Guide Rail, Right of Way and Property 

Fence, Highway Slab Reinforcement Placer Laborer (Landscape, Planters, Seeders, Arborists), 

Magazine Tender, Rail Trackman & Signalmen, Laser Beam Men for Pipe Laying & Paving 

Machines, Pneumatic & Electric Tool Operators, Jack Hammers, Paving Breakers, Concrete 

Saws, Whacker Vibrator, Sheet Hammers, Chainsaws, Pipelayers, Asphalt Rake, Lute or Screed 

Men, Highway Concrete Block Layers, Walk Behind Rollers, Walk Behind Trencher 

Laborers’ Class IV 

Caisson open Air Below 8’, Cofferdam open Air Below 8’ where excavating for Circular 

Caisson and Cofferdam 8’ Below Natural elevation of Grade Adjacent to Starting Point, Form 

Setters Road, Certified Concrete Technician, Concrete Rubber, Wagon Drill, Diamond Point 

Drill, Guinite Nozzle Operator, Blaster 

Laborers’ Class V 

Foreman, Form Setter, Road Foreman, Reinforced Steel Placer, Bonding Aligning and Securing, 

Burning and Welding in conjunction with Rebar, Concrete Surfacer 

Laborers’ Class VI 

Outside Laborers in conjunction with Tunnels and Rock Shafts 

Laborers’ Class VII 
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Chuck Tenders, Muckers, Nippers, Miners Helpers, Inside Laborers 

Laborers’ Class VIII 

Miners, Drillers, Blasters, Pneumatic Shield Operators, Lining, Spotting and Timber Workers, 

Rebar Steel Placer, Bonding Aligning and Securing, Welders and Concrete Surfacers 
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Definition for 22 County Building 

Construction Operators 

Tioga, Bradford, Lycoming, Sullivan, Union, Montour, Columbia, Snyder, Northumberland, 

Juniata, Perry, Dauphin, Cumberland, Lebanon, York, Lancaster, Adams, Schuylkill, Berks, 

Lehigh, Northampton, Carbon 

Operators Class 1 

Machines Doing Hook Work  Cableways 

Any Machine Handling Machinery Drag Lines 

Cable Spinning Machines Derricks 

Helicopter All types of Overhead Cranes 

All Types of Cranes * High Rail/Burro Crane 

Rail Loader (Winch Boom Type)    

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

  

* On all machines with booms, jibs, masts and leads 100 feet from ground up, fifty ($0.50) cents 

per hour additional will be paid for each increment of 25 feet over 100 feet. On cranes with 

booms (including jibs, masts and leads, etc.), 200 feet and over, two (2) operators shall be 

required, no oilers will be required, with seventy-five ($0.75) cents in increments of 25 feet. 

  

Tower cranes calculated from ground up and out for purpose of boom pay. 

Operators Class 1a 

Machines Doing Hook Work High Rail/Burro Crane 15 Ton and Over 

(Factory Rating) 

Machines Handling Machinery Rail Loader, Winch Boom Type, 15 Ton and 

Over (Factory Rating) 

All Types of Cranes 15 Ton and Over 

(Factory Rating) 

Equipment in this wage group that does not 

require an oiler 

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 2 
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Keystones Bundle Puller Extractors (Tubular Type) 

All Types of Shovels Scrapers & Tournapulls 

All Types of Backhoes Spreaders 

Trench Shovels Tree Spade 

Trenching Machines Bulldozers & Tractors 

Hoists With Two Towers Vermeer Saw 

All Pavers (Blacktop & Concrete) Side Boom 

Building Hoists (Double Drum) Rollers (High Grade Finishing) 

All Front-End Loaders Mechanic-Welders 

Tandem Scrapers Chipper With Boom 

Pippin Type Backhoes Motor Patrols 

Hydro Ax Concrete Breaking Machines 

Boat Captains Concrete Pumps 

Milling Machines Fine Grade Machines 

Batch Plant Operators (Concrete) Grease Trucks 

Bobcat Type (All Attachments) Directional Boring Machines 

All Autograde & Concrete 

Finishing Machines (Excluding Trowel 

Machines) 

Production Switch Tamper 

Drills, Self-Contained Rotary Drills Ballast Regulators 

Fork Lifts (20 Feet & Over) Tie Replacer 

Gradalls Rail/Road Loader 

Mucking Machines in Tunnel Power Jack Liner 

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 2a 

Crawler Backhoes Over One Cubic Yard Equipment 15 Ton and Over 



3 
 

Crawler Gradalls Over One Cubic Yard Concrete Pumps 92 feet of Boom Length (150 

yd. pour or less) 

Hydraulic Backhoes Over One Cubic Yard Equipment in this wage group that does not 

require an oiler 

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 3 

Conveyors Second Class Drill, Self-Contained Rotary 

Drills 

Building Hoists (Single Drum) Fork Lift Trucks (Under 20 Feet Lift) 

High or Low Pressure Boilers Stump Grinder 

Well Drillers Miscellaneous Equipment Operator 

Asphalt Plant Engineers Tireman (For Power Equipment)  

Ditch Witch Type Trenchers   

Core Drill Operator    

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 4 

Welding Machines Concrete Breaking Machines (Guillotine) 

Well Points Rollers 

Compressors Seaman Pulverizing Mixer 

Pumps Grout Pump 

Heaters Power Broom 

Farm Tractors Forced Air Propane Heater 

Form Line Graders Seeding Spreader 

Road Finishing Machines   

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 
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Operators Class 5 

Fireman 

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 6 

Oilers & Deck Hands (personnel Boats)  Core Drill 2 nd Class  

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 7 (A) (Toxic/Hazardous Waste Removal) 

Machines Doing Hook Work Derricks 

Any Machine Handling Machinery All Types of Overhead Cranes 

Cable Spinning Machines High Rail/Burro Crane 

Helicopters Rail Loader (Winch Boom Type) 

All Types of Cranes   

Cableways   

Drag Lines   

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 7 (B) (Toxic/Hazardous Waste Removal) 

Keystones Bundle Puller Extractors (Tubular Type) 

All Types of Shovels Scrapers & Tournapulls 

All Types of Backhoes Spreaders 

Trench Shovels Tree Spade 

Trenching Machines Bulldozers & Tractors 

Hoists With Two Towers Side Boom 

All Pavers (Blacktop & Concrete) Rollers (High Grade Finishing) 
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Building Hoists (double Drum) Vermeer Saw 

Gradalls Mechanic – Welders 

Mucking Machines in Tunnel Chipper With Boom 

All Front-End Loaders Motor Patrols 

Tandem Scrapers Concrete Breaking Machines 

Directional Boring Machines Milling Machines 

Pippin Type Backhoes Fine Grade Machines 

Hydro Ax Concrete Pumps 

Boat Captains  Grease Trucks 

Finishing Machines (Excluding Trowel 

Machines) 

Bobcat Type (All Attachments) 

Power Jack Liner Rail/Road Loader 

Tie Replacer Production Switch Tamper 

Batch plant Operators (Concrete) Ballast Regulators 

Drills, Self-Contained Rotary Drills   

Fork Lifts (20 Feet & Over)   

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 
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Definition for 29 County Heavy Equipment 

Operators 

Tioga, Bradford, Lycoming, Sullivan, Union, Montour, Columbia, Snyder, Northumberland, 

Juniata, Perry, Dauphin, Cumberland, Lebanon, York, Lancaster, Adams, Schuylkill, Berks, 

Lehigh, Northampton, Carbon, Susquehanna, Wayne, Wyoming, Lackawanna, Pike, Luzerne, & 

Monroe 

Operators Class 1 

Machines Doing Hook Work Cableways 

Any Machine Handling Machinery Drag Lines 

Cable Spinning Machines Derricks 

Helicopters High Rail/Burro Crane 

All Types of Cranes * Rail Loader (Winch Boom Type) 

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

  

* On all machines with booms, jibs, masts and leads 100 feet from ground up, fifty ($0.50) cents 

per hour additional will be paid for each increment of 25 feet over 100 feet. On cranes with 

booms (including jibs, masts and leads, etc.), 200 feet and over, two (2) operators shall be 

required, no oilers will be required, with seventy-five ($0.75) cents in increments of 25 feet. 

Operators Class 1a 

Machines Doing Hook Work High Rail/Burro Crane 15 Ton and Over (Factory 

Rating) 

Machines Handling Machinery Rail Loader, Winch Boom Type, 15 Ton and Over 

(Factory Rating) 

All Types of Cranes 15 Ton and Over 

(Factory Rating) 

Equipment in this wage group that does not 

require an oiler 

Operators Class 2 

Keystones   

All Types of Shovels Drills, Self-Contained Rotary Drills 
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All Types of Backhoes Concrete Pumps 

Trench Shovels Fork Lifts (20 Feet & Over) 

Trenching Machines Grease Truck 

Hoists With Two Towers Scrapers & Tournapulls 

All Pavers (Blacktop & Concrete) Side Boom 

All Types of Overhead Cranes Spreaders 

Building Hoists (Double Drum) Bobcat Type (All Attachments) 

Concrete Breaking Machines Bulldozers & Tractors 

Gradalls Vermeer Saw 

All Autograde & Concrete Finishing 

Machines 

Boring Machines Including Directional Boring 

Machines 

Mucking Machines in Tunnel Tree Spade 

All Front-End Loaders Hydro Ax 

Bundle Puller Extractors (Tubular) Chipper with Boom 

Tandem Scrapers Production Switch Tamper 

Pippin Type Backhoes Ballast Regulators 

Rollers (High Grade Finishing) Tie Replacer 

Boat Captains Rail/Road Loader 

Mechanic-Welder Power Jack Liner 

Batch Plant Operators (Concrete)   

Motor Patrols   

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 2a 

Crawler Backhoes Over One Cubic 

Yard 

Equipment 15 Ton and Over 
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Crawler Gradalls Over One Cubic 

Yard 

Concrete Pumps 92 feet of Boom Length (150 yd. 

pour or less) 

Hydraulic Backhoes Over One Cubic 

Yard 

Equipment in this wage group that does not require an 

oiler 

Operators Class 3 

Conveyors Fork Lift Trucks (Under 20 Feet Lift) 

Building Hoists (Single Drum) Second Class Driller 

High Or Low Pressure Boilers Self Contained Rotary Drills 

Well Drillers Fine Grade Machines 

Asphalt Plant Engineers Stump Grinder 

Ditch Witch Type Trenchers Tireman (For Power Equipment) 

Core Drill Operator   

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 4 

Welding Machines Concrete Breaking Machines (Guillotine Type) 

Well Points Rollers 

Compressors Seaman Pulverizing Mixer 

Pumps Power Broom 

Heaters Miscellaneous Equipment Operator 

Farm Tractors Seeding Spreader 

Form Line Graders   

Road Finishing Machines   

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 5 

Fireman 
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Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 6 

Oilers & Deck Hands (Personnel Boats) Core Drill Helper 2 nd Class 

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 7 (A) (Toxic/Hazardous Waste Removal) 

Machines Doing Hook Work Drag Lines 

Any Machine Handling Machinery Derricks 

Cable Spinning Machines High Rail/Burro Crane 

Helicopters Rail Loader (Winch Boom Type) 

All Types of Cranes   

Cableways   

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 7 (B) (Toxic/Hazardous Waste Removal) 

Keystones Bundle Puller Extractors (Tubular Type)> 

All Types of Shovels Scrapers & Tournapulls 

All Types of Backhoes Spreaders 

Trench Shovels Tree Spade 

Trenching Machines Bulldozers & Tractors 

Hoists With Two Towers Side Boom 

All Pavers (Blacktop Concrete) Rollers (High Grade Finishing) 

All Types of Overhead Cranes Vermeer Saw 

Building Hoists (Double Drum) Mechanic – Welders 

Gradalls Chipper With Boom 
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Mucking Machines in Tunnel Motor Patrols 

All Front-End Loaders Concrete Breaking Machines 

Tandem Scrapers Concrete Pumps 

Boring Machines Including Directional 

Boring Machines 

Grease Trucks 

Pippin Type Backhoes Bobcat Type (All Attachments) 

Hydro Ax Production Switch Tamper 

Boat Captains Ballast Regulators 

All Autograde & Concrete Finishing 

Machines (Excluding Trowel Machines) 

Tie Replacer 

Batch Plant Operators (Concrete) Rail/Road Loader 

Drills, Self-Contained Rotary Drills Power Jack Liner 

Fork Lifts (20 Feet & Over)   

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 
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Definitions for 29 County Highway 

Construction Operators 

Tioga, Bradford, Lycoming, Sullivan, Union, Montour, Columbia, Snyder, Northumberland, 

Juniata, Perry, Dauphin, Cumberland, Lebanon, York, Lancaster, Adams, Schuylkill, Berks, 

Lehigh, Northampton, Carbon, Susquehanna, Wayne, Wyoming, Lackawanna, Pike, Luzerne, & 

Monroe 

Operators Class 1 

All Types of Cranes * Bulldozers & Tractors 

All Type of Backhoes Log Skidder 

Drag Line Motor Patrols 

Keystones Chipper With Boom 

All Types of Shovels Mechanic Welders 

Derricks Hydro Ax 

Trench Shovels Side Boom 

Trenching Machines Tree Spade 

All Pavers (Blacktop & Concrete) Bob Cat Type (With Attachments) 

Gradalls Boring Machines Including Directional 

Boring Machines 

All Front End Loaders 

Tandem Scrapers 

All Autograde & Concrete Finishing 

Machines (Excluding Trowel Machines) 

Pippin Type Backhoes Concrete Breaking Machines 

Boat Captains High Rail/Burro Crane 

Batch Plant With Mixer Rail Loader (Winch Boom Type) 

Drill Self-Contained (Drillmaster Type) Production Switch Tamper 

Milling Machine Ballast Regulators 

Vermeer Saw Tie Replacer 

Conveyor Loader (Euclid Type) Rail/Road Loader 
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  Power Jack Liner 

  Concrete Pumps 

  

* On all machines with booms, jibs, masts and leads 100 feet and over, twenty-five ($0.25) cents 

per hour additional will be paid for each increment of 25 feet over 100 feet. On machines with 

booms (including jibs, masts and leads, etc.), 200 feet and over, two operating engineers shall be 

required. 

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 1a 

Crawler Backhoes Over One Cubic Yard 

(Factory Rating) 

Cherry Picker Type Machinery and 

Equipment 15 Tone and Over 

Hydraulic Backhoes Over One Cubic Yard 

(Factory Rating) 

Single Person Operation Truck Cranes 15 Ton 

and Over (Factory Rating) 

All Types of Cranes 15 Ton and Over 

(Factory Rating) 

Equipment in this wage group that does not 

require an oiler 

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment  

Operators Class 2 

Spreaders  

  

Asphalt Plant Engineers 

  

Rollers (High Grade Finishing)   

Stump Grinder 

  

Grease Truck 

  

Fork Lifts (20 Feet & Over)   

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 3 

Welding Machines  

  

Well Points 

  

Compressors 

  

Pumps 

Rollers 

  

Miscellaneous Equipment Operator 

  

Seaman Pulverizing Mixer 

  

Tireman (For Power Equipment) 
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Heaters 

  

Farm Tractors 

  

Form Line Graders 

  

Ditch Witch Type Trencher 

  

Road Finishing Machines 

  

Concrete Breaking Machines (Guillotine 

Type) 

  

Power Broom Conveyor Landers Other Then 

Euclid Type 

  

Seeding Spreader 

  

Conveyors 

  

Driller Second Class 

  

Fork Lifts (Under 20 Feet) 

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment 

Operators Class 4 

Fireman 

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment  

Operators Class 5 

Oilers & Deck Hands (Personnel Boats) 

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment  

Operators Class 6 

On All machines with Booms (Including Jibs, Masts Leads, Etc.) 100 Feet 

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment  

Operators Class 6a 

On all machines with Booms (Including Jibs, Masts Leads, Etc.) 100 Feet 15 Ton and Over 

(Factory Rating) 

  

Equipment in this wage group that does not require an oiler 

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment  

Operators Class 7a (Toxic/Hazardous Waste Removal) 
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Pile Drivers or Engineers - Working with 

Dock Builder & Pile Drivers  

  

All Types of Cranes 

  

All Types of Backhoes 

  

Drag Line 

  

Keystones 

  

All Types of Shovels 

  

Derricks 

  

Trench Shovels 

  

Trenching Machines 

  

All Pavers (Blacktop & Concrete) 

  

Gradalls 

  

All Front End Loaders 

  

Tandem Scrapers 

  

Pippin Type Backhoes 

  

Boat Captains 

  

Batch Plant With Mixer 

  

Drill Self-Contained (Drillmaster Type) 

  

CMI Autograde 

  

Vermeer Saw 

  

Scrapers & Tournapulls 

Chipper With Boom 

  

Boring Machines Including 

  

Directional Boring Machine 

  

Conveyor Loader (Euclid Type) 

  

Bulldozers & Tractors 

  

Hydro Ax 

  

Concrete pumps 

  

Tree Spade 

  

Motor Patrols 

  

All Autograde & Concrete Machines 

(Excluding Trowel Machines) 

  

Mechanic Welders 

  

Log Skidder 

  

Concrete Breaking Machines 

  

Side Boom 

  

Bob Cat Type (With Attachments) 

  

Ballast Regulators 

  

Tie Replacer 

  

Rail/Road Loader 

  

Power Jack Liner  

  

Machines Similar to above including remote control equipment  
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Painters Notes for Building, Heavy, 

Highway Painters 
Cameron, Crawford, Forest, Potter & Warren Counties 

Painters Class 1 - Industrial Rates (Heavy/Highway) 

  

Painters Class 2 - Commercial Rates (Building) 

Allegheny, Fayette, Greene & Washington Counties 

Painters Class 1 - Industrial Brush & Roll (Heavy/Highway) 

  

Painters Class 2 - Industrial Sandblast & Spray (Heavy/Highway) 

  

Painters Class 3 - Bridge, Hot Stack, & Transmission Towers (Heavy/Highway) 

  

Painters Class 4 - Painter Tender I (Heavy/Highway) 

  

Painters Class 5 - Painter Tender II (Heavy/Highway) 

  

Painters Class 6 - Commercial Painting & Paperhanging (Building) 

Armstrong, Beaver, Bedford, Blair, Butler, Cambria, Centre, Clarion, Clearfield, Elk, Fulton, Huntingdon, Indiana, Jefferson, Juniata, 

Lawrence, Mercer, Mifflin, Somerset, Venango & Westmoreland Counties 

Painters Class 1 - Industrial Brush & Roll (Heavy/Highway) 

  

Painters Class 2 - Industrial Sandblast & Spray (Heavy/Highway) 

  

Painters Class 3 - Bridge, Hot Stack, & Transmission Towers (Heavy/Highway) 

  

Painters Class 4 - Painter Tender I (Heavy/Highway) 

  

Painters Class 5 - Painter Tender II (Heavy/Highway) 

  

Painters Class 6 - Commercial Painting & Paperhanging (Building) 

Bucks, Chester, Delaware, Montgomery & Philadelphia Counties 

Painters Class 1 - Brush, Roller & Spray 

  

Painters Class 2 - Bridge 

  

Painters Class 3 - Wallcoverer 
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Adams, Berks, Bradford, Carbon, Clinton, Columbia, Cumberland, Dauphin, Franklin, Lackawanna, Lancaster, Lebanon, Lehigh, Luzerne, 

Lycoming, Monroe, Montour, Northampton, Northumberland, Perry, Pike, Schuylkill, Snyder, Sullivan, Susquehanna, Tioga, Union, 

Wayne, Wyoming & York Counties 

Paitners Class 1 - Commercial* 

  

Painters Class 2 - Industrial (includes Structural Steel, Industrial Spray & Sandblasting)* 

  

Painters Class 3 - Bridge* 

  

* 

$1.00per hour above the rate for all classifications for work done in the following 

manner:  Steel, Spray, Epoxy, HIPAC Coatings, Catalyzed Epoxy, Urethanes, Removers, 

Swing, Basket, and Sandblasting 

Clinton County 

Painters Class 1 - Spray 

  

Painters Class 2 - Brush & Roller 
 



Notes for Electric Lineman 
 

Updated September 19, 2018 
 
 

Assembling, installation, erection, operation, maintenance, repair, control, inspections of 

all apparatus devices, wires, cables, supports, insulators, conductors, ducts, raceways, 

conduits including temporary, permanent, maintaining or restoring electrical service 

when part of outdoor lighting and wiring when fed from the street and controlled from 

the street.   

 

All work consisting of wood poles, concrete or metal (or substitutes therefore) poles or 

towers, including wires, cables or other apparatus supported therefrom.  Installing and 

maintaining the catenary and trolley work on railroad property and bonding of rails.   

 

All outdoor substations, electrical connections and grounding including the setting of 

transformers and connecting the buses thereto, windmills and solar installations.  

 

 Installation and maintenance of roadway lighting and traffic signals systems electronic 

signs, and intelligent transportation systems.    

 



The employer may also pay the apprentice the percentages listed in the state approved program under 
which the apprentice is registered. 

The rates are listed in % of Journeyman rate and in six-month intervals 

Asbestos and Insulation Workers 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

45! 45!
Boilermakers 

601 65! 
Brickla�ers 

soj 501 
Carnenters 

35! 40!
Cement Finishers 

501 501 
Dockbuilders/Piledrivers 

60! 
Drywall Finishers 

401

65)

501

48!

101 

60! 

45!

151 

701

601 

I 
Electricians {1500 hour �eriods)

301 351 40!

I 
Floor Layers 

45! 51 ! 571
Glaziers 
I 351 401

501
Iron Workers 

551 551 651 

j 
Building Laborers 

501 601 70!
Painters 
I 40! 551 651 
Plasterers 

SOI 601 651 
Plumbers 
I 40[ 451 551 
Roofers 

471 471 52! 
Sheetmetal 40! 45! 501 

I 
S�rin klerfitters 

351 40! 451
Steamfitters 

34[ 391 441

I 
Tile Layers 

so! 
50! 60! 

5oj 551 sol 

75! 80! 851 

651 101 75! 

50! 601 651 

151 901 90!

751 80! 851 

701 801 901

50! 601 751 

631 691 751

551 60! 101 

651 151 751 

80! 

751 851 901

701 151 80! 

651 801 90!

521 601 601 

551 60! 651 

501 551 601

481 531 58!

S5! 701 151 

65! 701 751 

90j 951

80! 901

751 80! 851 

821 88! 

80! 90j

85j s51 

851 90[

151 151 

101 801 

651 701 75!

63! 681 731

801 90!

aoj 

901

801 

801 


